
 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - April 6, 2009 
 

 

 Page 1       

 
The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, 
State of New Jersey was held on April 6, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township 
Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New Jersey.  
 
The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public 
Meetings Act and that adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law. 
 
The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk: 
 
 Councilmember Thomas Conrad 
 Councilmember Wayne Mazurek    
 Councilmember Glenn Douglass    
 Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare 
 Mayor Michael Beck 
 
Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor and Kathleen McPherson, Manager 
 
 
 National Start! Walking Day Proclamation 
Mayor Beck read the proclamation for National Start which encourages people to get more 
active and get a healthier life style. 

 
 WORK SESSION 

 
 Senator Jeff Van Drew 
Mayor Beck said he was pleased to have Senator Van Drew present.  He said he would like to 
do this more often at all levels of government.  He said the lines of communication were very 
important. 
Senator Van Drew thanked Mayor and Council and said he was committed to trying to do his 
best in representing the area he also had all of Cape May County, Cumberland and part of 
Atlantic County and sometime he was stretched to thin.   
Senator Van Drew said he had some people discuss the Ponder Lodge issue and said there had 
been some problems there.  He said it was a unique and beautiful area.  Most recently it had 
become an eyesore and a problem and very close to being demolished.  He said the President 
of Stockton College  met with him last week to discuss Ponder Lodge and if something couldn’t 
be done in a short period of time as in the property cleaned up, safe, supervised then it would 
have to be demolished.  He said it could be a satellite college and would have environmental 
studies there.   
Senator Van Drew said it would create some jobs and be great for Lower Township but couldn’t 
guarantee it would 
happen.  He said they would determine in a short period of time if they could use it and it 
wouldn’t be any cost the Township or taxpayers.     
Senator Van Drew said another issue he had been asked about was the state budget.  He said 
he struggled for years and believed in telling the truth and how it was.  He stated it was 
extraordinary times and required tough decisions.  The current situation was fault of both 
democrats and republicans and started in the Florio era and a 2.8 million increase that caused 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - April 6, 2009 
 

 

 Page 2       

outrage.  Then Whitman came in and cut sales tax, increased taxes and increased spending.  
He said then McGreevy , the Democrats were back and 6 million short so they didn’t want to 
raise taxes so they went into more debt and that was  why the State is where it was today. 
He said new legislation would now require voter approval for all borrowing.  He said when 
municipalities do their budgets they had to make sure there are recurring revenues.   
Senator Van Drew said another thing was the State spent to much on paper they had flyers, 
pamphlets, handouts, etc. which was a huge expense to the taxpayers.  He felt there should be 
10% cut out on bureaucracy.  He said attrition should be used and also the state purchasing 
plan wasn’t always the best price and reduce the number of vehicles used.   
He said the last issue was a report on immigration.  He felt it was very controversial and it was 
brought up to reduce tuition for immigrants which he fought against.  He said everyone’s family 
started from somewhere and they learned and shoulder their responsibilities.   
Senator Van Drew said we needed a system of immigration that worked.  He said he wouldn’t 
support low cost tuition and granting licenses to people here illegally.    
He said the final issue was fishing licenses and NJ didn’t have a saltwater fishing license.  He 
said the Federal Government approved a law to go into effect by 2010 that a registry be started. 
 If   registry wasn’t started then  the State would do it and collect the fees.  He sponsored a bill 
for a NJ Registry with no fee.  He said some people felt there should be a charge and the money 
go towards information and education on fishing.  He felt there were too many fees now. 
Mayor Beck asked if there was a spending CAP at the State level.   
Senator Van Drew said no, he sponsored a bill that would establish the same CAP as towns, 
schools, etc..     
Mayor Beck said he had asked Senator Van Drew with some help with grants. 
Deputy Mayor Lare thank the Senator for attending and asked him about COAH and said the 
Township was in the midst of the process and had spent thousands on plans.  He said once the 
application had reached the State level things got kicked around and what could  be done about 
that? 
Senator Van Drew said COAH started in Mount Laurel when towns had exclusionary zoning.  A 
lawsuit was filed and now New Jersey was the only State in the union that mandated affordable 
housing.  He said some towns were doing nothing and that left the town subjected to developers 
suing and putting in their plans.  He felt the State had screwed it up and it was too complicated 
and costly.  He said there was a 2 1/2% fee on development that would be repealed for at least 
18 months.  He said the answer was to get the law done for now and then it needed to be 
changed.   
Senator Van Drew said in all communities there had to be some balance.  He said there was 
legislation that if it met certain criteria then it met COAH mandates.  He said there were other 
changes that needed support and it would be difficult to get done.  He stated then there were the 
fair housing advocates who felt enough wasn’t being done. 
Deputy Mayor Lare asked the status of the Homestead Rebate and stimulus. 
Senator Van Drew said the homestead rebate and tax (PTR) for seniors were fine.  He said he 
wouldn’t vote for the current budget.  He said the NJ saver rebate didn’t go to those whose 
income was over $75,000.00.  He said if something was done with the College some of the 
stimulus money  may come towards energy costs. 
Councilmember Conrad said if Stockton came would they get security? 
Senator Van Drew said yes. 
Councilmember Conrad inquired about the bill that would allow Assessors  to lower 
assessments for certain areas. 
Senator Van Drew said it was in committee and would rely on Councils support.  He said so 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - April 6, 2009 
 

 

 Page 3       

many communities had revals at the height of the market.  As for Ponder Lodge if it wasn’t 
secured and monitored then the buildings would have to be demolished.  He said if Stockton 
came it would be a tremendous benefit to the area.  He felt it was a 50/50 chance.  He said 
Stockton had a foundation and resources,  the question was whether or not the property was 
good enough to be restored and the College would maintain the property. 
Mayor Beck asked that when the decision was made, maybe someone from Stockton and the 
Senator’s Office could come down and discuss it with the residents. 
Senator Van Drew said absolutely. 
 
 Public Questions for Senator Van Drew 
Joe Winters of Florida Avenue asked what was the work being done at Ponder Lodge, it looked 
like electrical work?   
Senator Van Drew said the State was probably taking a good close look at the property. 
Councilmember Douglass said there was a bid out to disconnect the power. 
Steve Sheftz of Townbank apologized to Senator Van Drew for missing a meeting last week.  He 
sent a letter of support for the project with Stockton. 
Ed Butler of Delaware Bay Drive thank Mayor and Council for the town meeting and if they had 
another meeting to 
invite Assemblymen Albano and Milam to attend and they could discuss many issues and 
problems.  He suggested the used of the Lower Cape May Regional High School.  He said they 
needed more State representation.  
Senator Van Drew said that was a good idea. 
Bill Greenfield asked why wasn’t any of the stimulus money put towards the Garden State 
Parkway project to eliminate the lights and it went to the Route 52 project. 
Senator Van Drew said he wasn’t happy with that.  He said the Route 52 project was shovel 
ready and with the stimulus funds that should free up other State funds.  He said the lights were 
dangerous and a detriment to Cape May County and said the project was moving forward and 
should be done by 2012. 
Wayne Weissman of Beechwood Avenue thanked Senator Van Drew for attending the meeting 
and said he had numerous questions on Ponder Lodge.  He said the Elks group wanted to take 
it over 3 years ago but weren’t allowed.  He said there had been a lot of vandalism and arsons 
there.  He felt the buildings should come down and feared the Police and Firemen could be hurt 
there on a call.  He said if Stockton came in the people from Lower Township should be hired.   
Mr. Weissman stated Lower Township Police were still responding to the state owned property 
and felt the buildings should go.  He said if they got hurt there who would pay for that, surely not 
the State.  He said Lower Township wasn’t heaven, but you could see it from here. 
Senator Van Drew agreed with Mr. Weissman it had to be resolved rapidly. 
Janet Pitts of Villas said CMC and Lower Township had lost a lot of population.  She said she 
was pro consolidation but didn’t believe it could be a win win situation.  She said less and less 
families were on the barrier islands so kids were sent to other areas.  She felt education was 
everyone’s responsibility.  She said the barrier islands didn’t want to pay for students in town.  
She said help was needed with that as school  taxes were 50% of the tax bill. 
Senator Van Drew said that was a good question and the very argument she used was used for 
Cape May Point and Lower Township same issue North Jersey towns used.   He said North 
Jersey want equalized school tax.  The North counties want consolidated school taxes and years 
ago the budget challenges should have made it attractive to consolidate school districts.  He 
said there were many layers of school administration in schools.  He said an administrator could 
cover a few school districts.   



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - April 6, 2009 
 

 

 Page 4       

Senator Van Drew said trying to consolidate schools was like a war zone, very difficult.   
Eric Kutepow of Shirley Avenue said he worked 4 jobs two were his own business.  He asked 
about the family leave benefits and how did that get passed.  He asked when were they going to 
close the loopholes on immigration. 
Senator Van Drew said legislation was introduced and an employer hire someone here illegally 
they would be subjected to a large fine.  He explained how an employer hired an independent 
contractor to benefit the employer.  He said the law was changed to eliminate that,  again if they 
were caught they would be heavily fined.  He went over a few scenarios on how employers skirt 
around paying taxes.  He said if they act like an employee and are there all 
day, then they were an employee. 
Senator Van Drew said the paid family leave was a tough issue.  He said the debate was 
whether or not it would apply to all businesses across the board.  He said they fought and 
changed the law to apply to those who had 50 or more employees.  He said it came about when 
working for small businesses people could not get off to take care of a dying family member. 
Mayor Beck thanked Senator Van Drew for coming to speak and he considered the meeting a 
success. 
 
 
                Overview - Function of the Office of Emergency Management - Art Treon, EM 
Coordinator 
Art Treon, Emergency Management Coordinator said he had been in that position for 10 years 
and his job was to 
prepare for emergencies in Lower Township.  He said he had the support of the Council, Police, 
Fire and agencies.  He said you had to prepare for what happened after an emergency.   
Mr. Treon said you couldn’t  prevent things that happen and recovery was important.  He said 
when evacuating you 
had to use the Garden State Parkway and Route 47 and you were not to use Route 9. 
Steve Sheftz asked how they planned to use the airport. 
Mr. Treon said there were exercises  planned for September 29th & 30th, October 1st & 2nd.   He 
said the exercise would be done with FEMA and other agencies.  He said they would use the 
CMC Airport and others would use the 
Woodbine Airport.  He said the airport would also be used to store equipment. 
Mayor Beck said that Art Treon was held in high esteem with other Municipalities and Managers.  
 

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items 
Deputy Mayor Lare questioned a bill from Remington Vernick.  He asked if the Recreation 
Center issue with the water was determined if it was a design flaw. 
Manager McPherson said the snow leaked in and ruined it. 
Deputy Mayor Lare said he felt the payment should be held until it was determined if it was a 
design flaw.  He said they paid for a new HVAC and snow leaked into it, was  it going to happen 
again? 
Solicitor Monzo suggested pulling it from the list. 
 
 Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items 
No questions from the public. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Approval of Minutes Jan. 15, March 16, March 30 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - April 6, 2009 
 

 

 Page 5       

Res. #2009-102  Payment of Vouchers, $2,745,322.56 
Res. #2009-103  Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott 

MacDonald and the Township of Lower For Engineering Services Related 
to Public Safety Building Roofing Systems & Leak Investigation Proposal 
(for the Rescue Squad Roof and Court entrance) 

Res. #2009-104  Resolution Appointing Members to the Mayor’s Advisory Board  
Res. #2009-105  Resolution Authorizing the Bid Award for Mobile Data Terminals 

for Police Vehicles Including Installation      ( $5,995 per unit - not to 
exceed 11 units total) 

Res. #2009-106  Payout of Terminal Leave (T. Nagel - retired - terminal leave 
payment due  for unused time) 

Res. #2009-107  Payout of Terminal Leave (G.  Slobodjian - retired - terminal leave 
payment due  for unused time) 

Res. #2009-108,  Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding Confirming 
Waiver of Eligible Employee Health Insurance Benefits Be Without 
Prejudice to Contract Rights (Waiver by two Police employees of 
Township’s benefit plan while they are receiving benefits from their current 
employer) 

Res. #2009-109,  Resolution Honoring our Troops and “Support our Troops Day” 
Res. #2009-110,  A Resolution requesting RELEASE of Demolition Bond for Block 

452, Lot 7; 611 Seashore Road, Cape May; Escrow #Z08-07-04 
(Releasing demolition bond - project completed) 

Res. #2009-111,  A Resolution Requesting Release of Demolition Bond for Block 
680, Lot 22; 1200 Rosehill Parkway, North Cape May (Releasing 
demolition bond - project completed) 

Res. #2009-112,  Resolution in Support of Naming of the Route 109 Cape May 
Canal Bridge the “Cape May County Veteran’s Memorial Bridge” 

Res. #2009-113,  Resolution Endorsing Submission of Recycling Tonnage Grant 
(Annual resolution to county) 

Res. #2009-114,  Emergency Temporary Appropriations (Required to operate for the 
month of April when the budget is scheduled for adoption - Increases 
Temporary Budget by 1/12) 

Res. #2009-115,  Issuance of Ice Cream Peddling Licenses for the Year 2009 to 
Summer Daze Ice Cream 

 
Councilmember Douglass  motioned to adopt the consent agenda items, seconded by 
Councilmember Mazurek. The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: 
Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Mazurek, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, 
Deputy Mayor  Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck , “yes”. 
 

Administrative Reports   
Personnel Action Report  
February 2009 - Municipal Court Judge 
Certificate of Determination & Award - Bond Anticipation Note - 2.5% Sturdy Savings Bank  
 
 Council Comments 
Councilmember Conrad said the Boy Scouts cleaned up Bethel Cemetery, also the concert for 
Nan La Corte was a 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - April 6, 2009 
 

 

 Page 6       

success.  The Lower Township Talent Show would be held on April 24th .  He said Troop 87 and 
the Founding Fathers would be having a beach clean up day in May, starting at Miami Avenue to 
the Ferry and there would be more information on it to come. 
Councilmember Douglass said the program for Nan LaCorte was great she dedicated many 
years to the Township and wished her well.   
Deputy Mayor Lare said the Solicitor and he had been working on the Adopt a Road Program 
and it should be done by next month. 
Mayor Beck said the Mayor’s Advisory Board decision was really tough.  He said so many good 
people applied and it was very difficult to whittle down.  He said he wanted a variety of people 
and have new people involved with the Township.  He said he was taking a chance with the 
board and had total confidence in everyone.  He wanted to push for more people to get active 
and involved.  He said Deputy Mayor Lare was trying for a road program and woul like more 
involvement with a town watch. 
 
 Public Comments    
Joe Winters reminded everyone to go vote on the school budget April 21st from 4:00pm to 9:00 
pm.    
John Skronwnski of Arctic Avenue asked if there was any representation from North Cape May 
on the Mayor’s Advisory Board? 
Mayor Beck said “yes”. 
Marty Fernandi said he was representing the Condo Association on Seaview Avenue said the 
noise from the new pumps was intolerable.  He said it ran 24 - 7 from May until the end of the 
summer.  He said maybe if the water pump was enclosed it would be alright.  He said the Cape 
May County Health Department verified the noise levels.  He said they would file suit if 
necessary if the Township didn’t do something. 
Mayor Beck asked the Manager if someone could contact Wildwood Water to see if they could 
do something about the noise. 
Jack Sparks asked the people who were appointed to the Mayor’s Advisory Board if they could 
meet briefly after the council meeting. 
A resident from Rochester Avenue said they went through the process of the Grand getting 
permits and then they came back to Council to vacate Rochester Avenue which wasn’t granted 
so now the builder has taken half of Rochester Avenue.  He said there was a problem also with 
beach access which he reviewed and said it looked like they were building a blockage at the end 
of Rochester Avenue. 
Solicitor Monzo said a right of way was given through the Township Zoning Board.  He said 
there had been no vacation of the right of way.  He said there was a 10 ft. walkway and more 
information and other conditions on the permits could be received through an OPRA request. 
Ed Butler said on April 16th at the Planning Board Meeting they would be discussing COAH. 
 
 
Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, Councilmember 
Douglass motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek the meeting 
unanimously adjourned by verbal “ayes” at   8:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________________    __________________________ 
           Mayor       Township Clerk 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - April 6, 2009 
 

 

 Page 7       

 
 
 
 
Approved: 


